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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Electric Utility
Spencer, 1A 51301

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Municipal Electric Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa (the Utility) as of December 31, 2004 and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Utility’'s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards,
Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govermnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Those standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial staternents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Utility, as of December 31, 2004, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 23, 2005 on our consideration of the Ulility's internal contro! over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the resuits
of our audit.
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The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4
through 7 and 25 through 27 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Lok et

February 23, 2005



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The purpose of management’s discussion and analysis (MDé&A) is to provide the reader with an
introduction to the financial statements. Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Electric
Utility (Utility) of the City of Spencer, Iowa’s financial performance provides an overview of the
Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

The Utility is implementing Government Accounting Standards Board Statement #34 (GASB
34) as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Because of these new
reporting standards for this year with significant changes in content and structure, much of the
information is not easily comparable to prior years. However, in future years, comparisons will
be more meaningful and will go further in explaining the Utility’s financial position and results
of operations.

2004 Financial Highlights
The Utility delivered approximately 152,289,000 kilowatt hours (kWh) of electricity to its retail
customers in 2004 compared to approximately 151,045,000 (kWh) in 2003.

The Utility’s net assets increased $143,561 to $45,034,436 as a result of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources {assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets report all revenues and expenses
incurred duning the fiscal year.

The statement of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, non capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities
and investing activities.

The notes to the financial statements provide the required disclosures and other information that
is necessary to give the reader a complete understanding of the data provided in the statements.
The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Condensed Financial Information
The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring, and planning,.

Condensed Balance Sheet

2004 2003
CUITENE ASSELS .uvieeireiee i iereiree i eee st e s st it e ea e ea e mreeaseeeeeenmnres $16,375,395 317,839,192
Capital assets - net of depreciation ..........cccocvimveevcnnicnnecnne 26,974,973 24,683,355
INODNCUITENT ASSELS ...voiiniiiiriericerrirsceenee s venrere creecensreesveneeans 17,735,532 9,984,758
Deferred COSS ..ot nere s crese s e e s rene e anarn 182.884 94,758
Total assets $61.268.784 $52,602,063
Current HabilITIES ..ovvvverieiiecieies e e e $ 1,954,348 $ 1,260,018
Long-term debt ... e 14,280,000 6,450,000
Total liabilities 16,234,348 7,710,018
Investments in capital assets - net of related debt ................. 11,957,857 17,911,943
RESIOCLEd oot ittt et e e s eeeesee e 8,467,937 1,618,343
UNTESITICLEA ovvriiieee s iee s e sss s e s sbas e s 24,608,642 25,360,589
Total net assets 45.034.436 44 890.875
Total liabilities and net assets 361,268,784 $52,602,063

Condensed Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2004 2003

Sales of €IeCITICIEY .cvvceireieeeiteciie et e e e aen s ¥ 7,456,330 $ 7,047,828
L0131 OO USSR 207.941 150,466

Total operating revenue 7,664,271 7,198,294
Power SUPPLY COSES ..o 4,668,272 4,409,441
Distribution system mainfenance ...........cocereereevrierveesersnnns 1,013,513 945,003
Depreciation and amortization ..........cccoveieieeecieceseeceenens 1,601,919 1,608,712
Customer service and administration ...........cocoveericienrccernnnns 939,922 873,153

Total operating expenses 8,223.626 7,.836.309
Operating income (loss) (559,355) (638,015)
Interest INCOME.......couiieireee v e e sn s e 608,605 591,373
INLErest BXPENSE ...cccieeiieiiecieeeie et e a e e s s e e (380,587) (404,607)
Other income (EXpenses) - Net ......ccveeieccorereennecrercceree e 474.898 454,956

Total non-operating revenues ............cccoceeeoveevviesreeirnnns 702,916 641.722
Change in net assets 143,561 3,707
Net assefs - beginning of YEar ........ccccevevovevvvivreerinnievessceenns 44 890,875 44,887,168
Net assets - end of year $45,034,436 $44 890,875



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Financial Analysis
The Utility’s total assets increased by approximately $8.5 million, of which approximately $6.8
million is related to the 2004 bond sale.

The Utility’s gross revenues increased by approximately $460,000 or 6.40%.

Power supply costs have increased by approximately $260,000. Other operating expenses
increased by approximately $145,000 due to increased expenses related to distribution
maintenance, customer service and metering.

Total operating loss generated in 2004 was $559,000 compared to $623,000 in 2003.

Utility non-operating income (expense) resulted in an additional $76,000 of income in 2004 over
2003 due to additional leases of utility facilities.

Total net income increased from $3,700 in 2003 to $143,000 in 2004.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

-Net capital assets increased by approximately $2,380,000 due to the construction of the Shine
substation, significant upgrades to the West substation, construction work in progress related to
the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4 (CBEC #4), and distribution construction.

During August of 2002, the Board of Trustees entered a joint ownership agreement for the
construction of the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4. The Utility will become a 1.07%
owner which is 8.453 megawatts. The Utility’s total ownership interest is estimated at
$13,600,000. The Utility’s construction work in progress totaled approximately $2,400,000 at
year end.

On February 1, 2004, the Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $8,750,000 in Electric
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004. The proceeds from these bonds will be used to finance a portion of
the construction of the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4 discussed above.

Economic Factors

The Utility continues to experience positive growth in retail sales: however, power supply costs
are increasing at a greater rate because of several factors. They include reductions in electricity
delivered and increased costs from Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), and increased
purchased power costs from NIMECA. In order to address these issues, the Board of Trustees
has entered into a joint ownership agreement for the construction of the CBEC #4 and has signed
a letter of intent to hecome a 6.25% participant of the Wisdom 2 combustion turbine generator.

The Utility is also adversely affected by the low interest rates currently being received on
invested funds.

The Utility completed a Cost of Service Study during 2004. The purpose of the study was to
assign operating and capital costs to the various rate classes and verify that rates were adequate
to cover those costs. The Board of Trustees adopted rate adjustments based on the study
effective March 1, 2005. The annual increase in revenue should approximate 10%.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to present our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Utility’s finances and operating activities. If you have any questions or require
additional information please contact the Finance Supervisor, 712 Grand Ave, PO Box 222,
Spencer, Iowa 51301.



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2004
ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 4):
Plant in service ............
Less accumulated depreclatlon .............................................

Plant in service - net

Construction WOrk in PrOgreSs .c....cccvververvissmressssressssssr s sssensscsanes

CAPITAL ASSETS - NET

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Noncurrent investments:

Board designated (Notes 2 and 3) ......cccccvvcieicenniceeecen.

Restricted {Notes 2 and 9)
Note receivable - City of Spencer (Note 7)
Note receivable - Municipal Communications Utility (Note 8)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted {Note 2) ..
Board designated (Notes 2 and 3)
Restricted {(Notes 2and 8) ..
Consumer deposits ..

Accounts receivable - net t;f.allowance for doubtful accountsm-m
OF $42,800 ..ot ettt

Unbilled usage
Materials and supplies inventory
Fuel inventory

Prepayments ... e e senee e

Accrued interest receivable (Note 8) ..o ecveieiieciiinccieiceeee
Note receivable - electric heat (Note 8) .......ccccccv v e,
Note receivable - City of Spencer (Note 7) ....ccocvverereieeeieiein e,

Notes receivable - employees (Note 5)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

DEFERRED COSTS:

Unamortized bond iSSUE COSIS ....ovvveceicrceieiereii e e eerveems s sesese s

TOTAL ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
B8

......

$48,105,329
23,797,937
24,307,392
2,667,581

3,815,283
6,816,999

53,250
7,050,000

1,051,516
11,191,566
1,650,938
20,727

892,348
363,600
627,654
162,570
65,841
313,578
482
26,625

7950

$26,974,973

17,735,532

16,375,395

182,884

$61,266.784



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Revenue bonds payable - less current installments (Note 9)........ $14,280,000
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Current installments of revenue bonds payable (Note 9) ............. $ 920,000

Accounts payable ................. 665,967

Accrued wages, vacatlons and benef ts ..................................... 227,235

Accrued INErESt ... e 55,380

[07oT g T=T T4 oT=) glfa (= o T =] | - 20,644

Accrued expenses .......... 65,122

TOTAL CURRENT LIAB[LITIES 1,954,348

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 15 and 17} ........

TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,234,348
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt ............ccevvrireeeeen, 11,957,857
Restricted - bond funds (Note 9) .................................................... 8,467,937
Unrestricted . eeeenea rereremrerarene e racmrenenenecmrananannnennnnnees 24,008,642
TOTAL NET ASSETS 45 034,436
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $61,268,784

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Slalements
g



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

OPERATING REVENUES:
Residential ..........cocoviiiiireee e e B 2,827,047
0703 111 1L (o] = | R 3,875,697
Public authOrtiEs ......ccoeeiriercecceerereree e e s 650,466
SalesS fOrraSale ......ccivivieireee e e 161,845
Interdepartmental ... e e 103,120
PENAIES ...coeeieeie et et r e e er e e an s e e ae s erar e 10,899
Rental income .. 20,334
Miscellaneous . 14,863
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 7,664,271

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Generation and transmission:
Neal #4 fuel and generation .........ccccee v verciesnicieees e 830,751
Purchased pOWer ..o e e 3,759,376
L0 1= USROS POPRPTP 78,145
7153 {1 w0 ] 1T T 1,013,513
Depreciation and amortization ..........c.ccceeeeeieeiecie e, 1,601,919
Customer operations .. 219,496
General and admlnlstratlve 720,426
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 8,223,626

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (559,355)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) AND TRANSFERS:
Interest income on investments .. 283,121
Interest income from Municipal Communlcation Utlllty (Note 8) 325,484
Economic development payments ........ccovicceiiiiiiiicieeeeceees (188,040)
Leased facilities (NOte 12) ..o 997,680
Interest expense . (380,587)
Gain on plant retlrements ............................................................ 14,094
Transfers to City - in lieu of property taxes (Note 7} ......ccccvveennees (348.836)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
AND TRANSFERS - NET 702,916

NET INCOME 143,561

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ccocoieiiicriinceree e e, 44 890,875

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $45.034.436

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received fTOmM CUSIOMETS ...uvivrerroreereeertesesiart e s ersmrise e s s rr v ss e e rens $ 7,621,920
Cash paid 10 SUPPHEIS .ot rerer s sse s esae s nesenenenneennes (0, 182,201)
Cash paid to emMPIOYEES ..o ccviviiiir e (1.333.195)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,106,524
CASH FLOWS FRCOM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions paid for economic development ...........coovrvrvicricecrcniencines (188,040}
Transfer to City - in lieu of property tax .......... (348,836)
NET CASH USED IN NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES (536,876)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .........cccovrvncrvccnccvriciiceceee. (3,903,606)
Proceeds received from sale of capital assets .....cccccoe i ccccccsiseeec e, 37,948
Proceeds received from issuance of revenug bonds .........coeevecevecerenereierenenens . 8,750,000
Revenue bond principal repayment .. (415,000)
Cost of revenue bond issuance . . (103,081)
Payments received from leasing of facmttes 987,408
Interest paid .. . (358,859)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4,994 810
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments received on note receivable - City of Spencer .....ccccevvevieiviiiiieniene 26,625
Payments received on notes receivable - employees ........cccccvimiiiiiiciinininees 7,234
Payments received on note receivable - electric heat ........oceeeviiiivimnnnennns 635
Loan advances for nofes receivable - employees .......... (9,575)
Payments received on note receivable - Communlcatlons Utlllty 300,000
Proceeds from redemption of investments . 1,903,883
Purchase of investments .. (9,941,496)
[nterest income on mvestments 243,335

interest income from note recewable Communlcatlons Utlllty 521.079

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (6.948,280)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,383,822)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ...corevovenreeensrecerene 15,277,842
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $13,894,020

Sse Accompanying Notes lo Financial Statements
11



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations .............

Adjustments to reconcile income from operatlons to net cash prowded by

operating activities:
Depreciation ..
Amortization ..

(Increase) decrease |n

Consumer deposits ..

ACCOUMS TECEIVADIR ... ..ot r et ot e s e eea e s e raraeen s

Unbilled usage ...........
Materials and supplies mventory
Fuel inventory

Prepayments .............I.Z......ZIIZIIZZIIIIZZII::IIIII:ffﬁ::ﬁﬁﬁIIIIIIIIIIIIIZ"'

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable ..

Accrued wages, vacat:ons and benefts
ConsumMEr dePOSIS ...ttt
ACCTUEd EXPENSES ... ree i crerttete e et r e menes revererenrereeeeeanan

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Noles to Financial Statements
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$ (550,355}

1,588,134
13,785

(1,105)
(49,568)
7,300
(98,435)
55,430
(17,264)

85,472
39,825
1,022

41,283

1.665.879
$ 1,106,524



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Basis of Accounting
The Municipal Electric Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa (Electric Utility or Utility)
operates as an independent unit of the City of Spencer and is managed, along with the
Municipal Water Utility and the Municipal Communication Utility of the City of Spencer,
lowa, by a five member Board of Trustees.

The Utility follows the accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission for regulated utilities and proprietary fund accounting for
governmental entities under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

For financial reporting purposes, the Utility has included all funds. The Utility has also
considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Utility are such that exclusion would cause the Utility’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set
forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria
include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body, and (1) the
ability of the Utility to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
Utility. [t was determined that the Utility has no compoenent units.

The Utility is not considered to be a component unit of the City of Spencer for financial
statement purposes. An audit of the City of Spencer for the year ended June 30, 2004
has been completed and is filed under separate cover.

The Utility’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash fiows.

In reporting the financial activity of its enterprise fund, the Utility applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronocuncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The Utility distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with the Utility’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Utility are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets are stated at original cost when first devoted to public service.
Currently, such costs include labor-related expenditures, such as payroll taxes,
pensions, and other fringe benefits and administrative costs for labor related to the
construction of new electric facilifies. In addition, net interest costs on construction
debt are capitalized. During 2004, the Utility capitalized interest expense of $155,455,
which equals total interest expense of $266,426 less interest income from invested
proceeds of $110,971.

Under a joint ownership agreement with other utilities, the Electric Utility has a 1.215%
undivided interest in a 640 MW eleclric generation station known as George Neal
Generating Station Unit No. 4. The Electric Utility's 1.215% ownership interest in this
plant represents a total investment of $4,723,691 included in utility plant in service with
$3,318,446 included in accumulated depreciation. Operating costs associated with
this plant and depreciation are reflected in the statement of income.

Under a joint ownership agreement with other utilities, the Electric Utility has a 1.07%
undivided interest in an electric generation station known as Council Bluffs 4, which is
currently under construction with expected completion in 2007. Additional information
is included in Note 17.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided on a slraight-line basis. Current depreciation expense is
approximately 3.30% of the original cost of depreciable electric plant in service.

The estimated useful lives used to depreciate assets by class are as follows:

Infrastructure 20 - 33 years
Buildings and improvements 20 years
Equipment 5 years

G. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Utility expects to collect from
outstanding balances. The Utility provides for probable uncollectible amounts through
a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of
the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the
Utility has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
vatuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. Changes in the valuation
allowance have not been material to the financial statements.

D. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The average cost method is
used for determining the cost of materials and supplies inventory. Inventories are
recorded as an expendifure when consumed.

14



1.

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E.

Unamortized Bond Issue Costs
Unamortized debt issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt on a straight-line
basis which approximates the effective interest method.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the financial
statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets
and increased by unspent debt when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.

The Utility’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Income Taxes

The Electric Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes because it is a
governmental entity organized under the provisions of Chapter 388 of the Code of
lowa.

. Revenues and Unbilled Usage

Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers’ consumption of
electricity. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at the end of accounting
periods. Revenues eamned, but not yet billed at December 31, 2004, totaled $363,600.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principals requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual resuits may differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS

The Utility's deposits at December 31, 2004 were entirely covered by federal depository

insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of
lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

The Utility is authorized by statute and Board of Trustees’ approval to invest in obligations
of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit
and other evidences of deposit at federally insured lowa depository institutions; and the

lowa Public Agency Investment Trust.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS -
Continued

The Utility had no investments that are subject to risk categorization. The Utility had
investments in lowa Public Agency Investment Trust which are valued at an amortized cost
of $6,787,680 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940 that also
are not subject to risk categorization.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Investments are recorded at cost which approximates market, Adjustments are made to
cost for any premium or discount, which is amortized over the maturity of the investment.
Adjustments are also made to account for the change in accrued interest on respective
investments.

Reconciliation of the Utility's cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments is as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Board designated ..........c.oooei it 911,101,566
RESIICIBA ..ottt e etseresavereee e reenmr e n s seneeeasase 1,650,938
L0 g3 g T =T o PR 1,051,516
Total cash and cash equivalents 13,894,020
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated ........ccciiciieirerrec e e 3,815,283
R | T 1o [ 6,816,999
Total noncurrent investments 10,632,282
Total cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments $24,526,302

3. BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

The Board of Trustees of the Ulility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
contingency reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted net assets, are
being designated for contingencies such as a natural disaster and cannot be expended
without Board approval.

The Board of Trustees of the Utility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
replacement and construction reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted
net assets, are being designated for replacement of property, plant, and equipment and for
new construction. These funds cannot be expended without Board approval.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004
BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS - Continued

Assets of the funds as of December 31, 2004 are summarized as follows:

Replacerment

and
Contingency Construction
Reserve Reserve Total
Cash and cash equivalents .........coocevcveceennnee. $1,225,849 $ 9,965,717 $11,191,566
Noncurrent investments .........co.ococcvciieeerenennnn 3,815,283 3,815,283
Total $1,225.849 $13,781.000 $15.006,849

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Beginning  Additions and Deletions and Ending

Balance Transfers In  Transfers Out Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ..o $ 86,092 $ 86,092
Construction in progress ........... 857,109 $1.810.472 2 667,581
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 943,201 1.810.472 2753673
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infraslructure .....ccccoeeeveeceeicnnnnes 40,279,321 1,809,238 $ (2,856) 42,085,703
Buildings and improvements .... 738,706 2,775 741,481
Equipment ..., 5,080,207 270,667 {158.821) 5,192,053
Total capilal assets being
depreciated 46,008,234 2,082,680 {161.677) 48,019,237
Less accumulated depreciation ... 22,358,080 1,588,134 (148,277) 23,797,937
Total capital assets being
depreciated - net ......................... 23,740,154 494 546 {13.400) 24,221,300
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET $24,683,366  $2,305018  $(13400) $26,974,973

NOTES RECEIVABLE - EMPLOYEES
The Board of Trustees has authorized the Electric Utility to purchase personal computers

for interested employees. The employees repay the Utility through payroll withholding
over a maximum of 24 months. No interest is charged on the unpaid balance.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

6. NOTE RECEIVABLE - ELECTRIC HEAT

The Board of Trustees determined that the operations of the Steam Heat Utility would be
suspended as of May 1989, and the Electric Utility would provide financial assistance to
the present steam heat customers converting to electric heat. At December 31, 1989, all
of the customers had converted from the steam heat system. The $482 balance is due
from one customer. The note bears a variable interest rate that is adjusted annually. The
rate at December 31, 2004 was 3.25%. The note is payable in monthly installments over a
15-year period and is secured by the equipment installed and by a personal guarantee.

7. TRANSFERS IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES/NOTE RECEIVABLE -
CITY OF SPENCER

By resolution of the Board of Trustees, voluntary transfers in lieu of property taxes are
made to the City of Spencer, lowa. Currently, transfers approximate 5% of gross sales,
less actual property taxes paid (on the George Neal Generating Station Unit No. 4) and
returned to the City of Spencer, lowa. Additionally, funds declared tc be surplus can be,
and have been, transferred to the City.

During 1996, the Utility advanced the City $355,000, of which $266,250 was a loan, to
perform public improvements in the area of West 11" Street in Spencer. The City
reimburses the Ulility in equal payments of $26,625 without interest, payable annually on
July 1. The balance of this note at December 31, 2004 was $79,875.

8. NOTE RECEIVABLE - MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY

The Board of Trustees has approved an $8,000,000 line of credit for the Municipal
Communications Utility for use in start-up and construction costs related to bringing the
Communications Utility into operation. At December 31, 2004, $8,000,000 has been
advanced and $7,050,000 remains outstanding. Outstanding balances bear interest at a
rate of 4.5% per annum. Accrued interest receivable was $313,578 at December 31,
2004.

9. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Series 2000 revenue bonds ...... $6.,865,000 $415,000 $ 6,450,000 $440,000
Series 2004 revenue bonds ...... $8.750,000 8,750,000 480,000
Total revenue bonds 6,865,000 8,750,000 415,000 15,200,000 $920,000
Current installments of revenue
bonds payable ..........cceeeeeee {415,000) (505,000) {920,000}
Revenue bonds payable - less
current installments .................. $6,450,000 £8,245.000 $415,000 $14,280,000



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

8. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - Continued

During 2004, the Utility issued $8,750,000 Series 2004 revenue bonds for the purpose of
paying costs of improvements and extensions fo the Ultility, including the construction of
generation and related transmission facilities to serve the Utility. The bonds mature in
2019 and interest rates throughout the term of the bonds range between 1.4% and 4.4%.

The Series 2000 and 2004 revenue bonds require annual principal payments, due
December 1, and semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. Interest
rates throughout the term of the bonds range between 1.4% and 5.75%. The bonds are
secured by the future net revenues of the Utility. Long-term debt matures and bears
interest as follows:

Series 2000 Series 2004
Principal Interest Principal [nterest
2005 o $ 440,000 § 359,068 % 480,000 $ 291,258
b0 1 465,000 334,867 490,000 284,537
2007 oo 490,000 308,202 495,000 275,963
2008 ..o 515,000 282,342 510,000 265,567
2000 e, 545,000 254,018 520,000 253,583
2010-2014 e, 3,230,000 782,765 2,840,000 1,024,672
2015-2019 . 765.000 43,987 3.415.000 450,215

$6.450,000 $2,366,339 $8,750,000 $2,845,795

The bond resolutions provide certain covenants relating to the collection, segregation, and
distribution of revenues from customers; places certain restrictions on future borrowing
and leasing or disposition of assets; and requires that minimum insurance coverage be
maintained.

Restricted Funds

Outstanding Electric Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the revenue of the Utility and
the various special funds established by bond covenants. The covenants provide that the
revenue of the ulility is to be used first to pay operating and maintenance expenses of the
system and second to establish and maintain the special funds. Remaining revenues may
then be used for any lawful purpose. The covenants also contain provisions which, among
other items, restrict the issuance of additional revenue bonds unless the special funds
noted above contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. The Utility
is in compliance with all significant financial requirements as of December 31, 2004,
except that the Series 2004 bond sinking fund was underfunded by approximately $10,000
at December 31, 2004.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - Continued

At December 31, 2004, the special funds consisted of the following:

Cash and
Cash Noncurrent
Equivalents Investments Total
Bond Sinking Fund ..........ccooeceiiviviiieieeee. $ 121,394 $ 121,394
Bond Reserve Fund .......ovieeecemememvriinninicininn. $1,582,718 1,582,718
Bond Improvement FUNd .........cccooiveeveieevnenes 751,880 751,980
Unexpended bond proceeds .........ccociiniiianns 1,529,544 _4,482 301 6,011,845
Total $1,650,938 $6,816.999  $8,467.937

Monthly deposits into tiwo bond sinking funds are required to establish the amount
necessary to pay the next installments of principal and interest on the 2000 and 2004
Electric Revenue Bonds. Bond reserve funds for the 2000 and 2004 Eleckric Revenue
Bonds equaled the required balance at December 31, 2004; therefore monthly deposits
into the fund are not currently required. These funds may be used to pay principal and
interest payments when insufficient funds are available in the sinking fund.

The bond improvement fund balance at December 31, 2004 equaled the minimum balance
required; therefore moenthly deposits into the fund are not currently required. These funds
are to be used first for principal and interest payments when insufficient funds are
available in the sinking and reserve funds and second for extraordinary unbudgeted
maintenance expenses or system repairs, renewals and replacements.

RATE MATTERS
Rates of the Utility are established by the Board of Trustees and, as a municipal system,
are not subject to the regulation of the Ulilities Division of the Department of Commerce of

the State of lowa. On January 12, 2005, the Utility approved a rate increase for all
consumption beginning on March 1, 2005.

NUMBER OF METER CONNECTIONS

The number of meter connections totaled 5,867 at December 31, 2004.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

12. LEASES

The Utility leases electrical generation capacity of a jet turbine generator and its share of
the Neal 4 plant under operating leases 1o other utilities or their associations. The
revenues from such leases are classified as leased facilities. The Utility's investment in
these facilities is included in capital assets in service and is set forth as follows:

Jet turbine generator .........cccccocivieiicinicvieceeeeee. 32,294,741
Nealdplant ... 4,723,691
Total 7,018,432
Less accumulated depreciation .........c.cccccecvererennenee. 5,456,204
Net investment $1,562,228

The lease of the Neal 4 plant is a long-term commitment based on capacity. The amount
is determined by formula based on usage and totaled $287,545 in 2004. The leases of the
jet turbine generator are both by noncancelable lease and a variable lease determined by
capacity and totaled $155,532 in 2004. The following is a schedule of future minimum

rentals on noncancelable operating leases on the jet turbine generator as of December 31,
2004:

2009 o e e e e 65,000
Total minirnum lease payment receivable $325,000

The Utility leases bandwidth, property, and building space to the Water Utility and
Communications Utility. The revenues from such leases are classified as leased facilities.
The leases are 20-year variable leases based on bandwidth and space utilized. Lease
income totaled $409,479 in 2004, of which $373,740 is included in accounts receivable at
December 31, 2004.

The Utility leases building space from the Water Utility. The expense from the lease is
classified as operating expense. The lease is a monthly lease based on building space
utilized. Lease expense totaled $7,337 in 2004, of which $667 is included in accounts
payable at December 31, 2004.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

IPERS

The Utility contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state
statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, PO Box 3117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-
9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual salary and the Utility is
required to contribute 5,75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are
established by State statute. The Ultility's contributions to IPERS for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $75,592, $75,874, and $75,141, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the Electric Utility who have completed six months of continuous
employment and are 21 years of age are eligible to participate in a Money Accumulation
Pension Plan administered by Copeland Plan Services. The Plan is a defined contribution
plan of the money purchase type, intended to qualify under Internal Revenue Service
Code Section 401(a), funded by a combination of employee and employer contributions.
Employees electing to participate are required to contribute 2% of their compensation, and
they may contribute an additional amount of not less than 1% and not more than 10% of
their compensation. The Ulility contributes 8% of the employees' compensation for all
employees electing to participate.

The Electric Utility’s contribution to the Money Accumulation Pension Plan for 2004 totaled
$105,485.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Electric Utility is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The Utility assumes
liability for any deductible and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. The Utility, as is typical in the electric power industry, does not insure
its transmission lines due to the high cost of such coverage.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

During 2000, the Electric Utility was named in two lawsuits by Mediacom, lowa LLC, the
competing cable television provider in Spencer, and a taxpayer (plaintiffs). Both of these
cases arise out of the establishment and operation of a communication utility governed by
the Spencer Municipal Utilities Board of Trustees. Both cases are currently in the
discovery stage and are consolidated for trial. A trial date has been set in the fall of 2005.
Plantiffs' motions for preliminary injunction in each case were denied by the court. The
court ruled there was not a reasonable likelihood that Plaintiffs would be successful on the
merits. The present actions seek to block the operation of the entire system. Spencer
Municipal Utilities’ insurer has agreed to defend the cases under a reservation of rights
pending further action. Should the insurance company ultimately decline coverage, the
Spencer Municipal Utilities would be responsible for attorney fees in defending the cases.
Spencer Municipal Utilities will continue to aggressively defend its action, if necessary.
However, at this time, an estimate or range of loss, if any, is unknown. While Spencer
Municipal Utilities believes the remaining claims will be successfully defended, this
litigation does present the possibility of very significant financial exposure for Spencer
Municipal Utilities.

RELATED PARTY

The Electric Utility, Water Utility, and Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa
exchange services in the normal course of business.

Two members of the Board of Trustees hald non-controlling interests in a financial
institution where the Utility maintains cash balances.

Additional related party items are included in Notes 8 and 12.

COMMITMENTS

During 2003, the Electric Utility entered into an agreement to purchase a 1.07% ownership
in the generating facilities at Council Bluffs 4. The plant is expected to be in production in
2007. The commitment of Spencer Municipal Utilities in order to maintain its percentage
of ownership is expected to approximate $13,600,000. Approximately $2,416,181 had
been paid or accrued resulting in a future commitment of approximately $11,183,819.
Future payments by the Utility would be required as construction pragresses.

During 2004, the Electric Utility entered into negotiations to purchase a 6.25% ownership
in the generating facilities at Wisdom 2. The Spencer Municipal Utilities’ commitment is
expected to approximate $2,400,000. Based on a letter of intent to acquire this ownership,
leased facilities revenues of approximately $124,600 were allocated to and realized by the
Utilities in 2004.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
- Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, Statement
No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments: Omnibus, Statement No. 38, Cerfain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures; and Statement no. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Perspective
Differences, were implemented for the year ended December 31, 2004. The statements
create new basic financial statements for reporting the Utility's financial activities.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Receipts, including bond proceeds:

Municipal Electric Utility ...........c...ccoeceie.
Municipal Water Utility .........c.cccovevvevicenenne.
Municipal Communications Utility .................

Combined receipts, including
bond proceeds

Disbursements, including capital outlay:

Municipal Electric Utility .........cocvciiiiiienennn
Municipal Water Utility ......................cc...c.
Municipal Communications Utility ...............

Combined disbursements, including
capital outlay

Transfers ] TR UPRRRR
Transfers out ...

Transfers in - net

Combined excess (deficit) of receipts
over disbursements

Combined beginning net assets .......c.cccveeee.

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Budgeted Final to
Amounts Actual
Actual Original/Final Variance
$18,496,184
956,317
_4.881.192
24,333,693 $24.163.000 % 170,693
11,842,393
1,000,605
4 305,807
17,148,805 12.839.105 {4,308,700)
1,400,000 (1,400,000)
{1,400,000) 1,400,000
7,184,888 11,323,895 (4,139,007)
22,619,451 31,047,036 (8,427,585)
$29,804,339 $42,370,931  $(12,566.592)

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Repart
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Revenues:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility ..

Municipal Communtcatlons Utmty

Combined revenues

Expenditures/expenses:

Municipal Electric Utility .........c.c........
Municipal Water Utility .......................
Municipal Communications Utility .................

Combined expenditures/expenses
Net

Combined other financing sources - net

Cornbined beginning net assets .........cceceeevne

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments  Accrual Basis

$ 9,746,184 § (461,534) § 9,284,650

956,317 39,208 995,525
4,881,192 105.268 4,986,460

15,583,693 {317.058) 15,266,635

11,842,393 (2,701,304) 9,141,089
1,000,605 107,583 1,108,188
4,305,807 {346.653) 3,959,154

17.148.805 (2,940,374} 14,208,431

(1,565,112) 2,623,316 1,058,204

8,750,000 {8,750,000)
22,619,451 28,139,778 20,759,229

329804339 §$22.013.004  $51,817.433

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Utilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and Municipal
Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa following required public notice and hearing.
The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized and appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known
as functions, not by fund. These functions are public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects and business type activities. All Utility disbursements are included
in business type activities function.

NOTE 2

The receipts, including bond proceeds, and disbursements, including capitai outlays, on the
cash basis for each Utility is summarized as follows:

Municipal Municipal Municipal
Electric Water Communications
Utility Utility Utility Combined

Receipts, including bond proceeds .......... $18,496,184 § 956,317 $ 4,881,192 $24,333,693
Disbursements, including capital outlay .. 11.842 393 1,000,605 4,305,807 17,148,805
Excess {deficit) of receipts over

disbursements 6,653,791 (44,288) 575,385 7,184,888
Beginning net assets ........cceevcieeniennenaes 17.872,511 4,154,037 592 903 22 618,451
ENDING NET ASSETS $24,526,302 $ 4,109,749 §$ 1,168288 $29,804,339
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Electric Utility
Spencer, 1A 51301

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Electric Utility of the City of Spencer,
lowa (the Utility) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, and have issued our report
thereon dated February 23, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Governmental Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility's operations for the year
ended December 31, 2004 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based
on tests and samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. There were no prior year statutory
comments.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the intermal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of

Member Private Companies Praclice Section,
American Institute of Cenified Public Accountanis



one or more of the intermal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
There were no prior year reportable conditions.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials
and employees of Spencer Municipal Utilities, the citizens of the City of Spencer and other
parties to whom Spencer Municipal Utilities may report. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

[ oclee At etC 7

February 23, 2005
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Part I: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

No matters were noted.
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Part II:

II-A-04

11-B-04

[I-C-04

I1-D-04

I-E-04

II-F-04

11-G-04

SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by
the Board. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution were not exceeded
during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004 exceeded
the amounts budgeted in the business type activities function. Chapter 384.20 of the
Code of lowa states in part that public monies may not be expended or encumbered
except under an annual or continuing appropriation.

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with
Chapter 384.18 of the Code of lowa before disbursements were allowed to exceed the
budget.

Response - The budget will be amended in the future, if applicable.

Conclusion - Response accepted.

Questionable Expenditures - No expenditures were noted which did not meet the

requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses - No expenditures of Utilities’ money for travel expenses of spouses
of Utilities' officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - Business fransactions between Spencer Municipal Utilities
and Spencer Municipal Utilities’ employees are detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction Description Amount

Rachel and Ryan Florke, children of employee  Cleaning Services $ 1,800

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa, the transactions for
cleaning services do not appear to represent conflicts of interest since total
transactions with each individual were less than $1,500 during the year.

Bond Coverage - Surety hond coverage of Spencer Municipal Utilities’ officials and
employees is in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Beard minutes but were not.
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Partll: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

II-H-04 Revenue Bonds - As of December 31, 2004, the Utility had complied with all significant
financial requirements related to its Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, and Electric
Revenue Bond, Series 2004, except that the Series 2004 bond sinking fund was under
funded by approximately $10,000.

Recommendation - The utility should make transfers to the Series 2004 bond sinking
fund necessary to bring the balance into compliance with bond resolution
requirements.

Response - We will make the necessary transfers to the bond sinking fund necessary
to bring the balance into compliance with bond resolution requirements.

Conclusion - Response accepted.

[I--04 Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapter 12(B} and 12(c} of the Code of lowa and the Utilities'
investment policy were noted.

Il-J-04 Economic Development - During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Utility paid
$142,500 to Spencer Area Jobs Trust for economic development. According to
Chapter 15A of the Code of lowa and an Attorney General's opinion dated August 28,
1986, government financing of economic development may, in appropriate
circumstances, serve a public purpose. The opinion advises the governing body to
evaluate the public benefits to be obtained and discusses specific criteria to be
considered in documenting the public purpose.

Recommendation - The public benefit to be derived by economic development
expenditures should be more clearly documented. The Board should evaluate and
document the public purpose served by the expenditure before authorizing payment
and should verify that the funds were spent as intended to accomplish economic
development activities.

Response - We will adopt a resolution regarding use of surplus utility funds for
economic development expenditures which serve a public purpose. The Board will
evaluate and document the public purpose served by economic development
expenditure before authorizing payment and will verify how the funds were used to
accomplish economic development activities.

Conclusion - Response accepted.
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1316 Wesi [8lh Strect 1004 21st Streel #4
P.Q. Box 175 P.O. Box 187
Spencer, Towa 51301-0175 Milford, lowa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712-338-2488
FAX 712-262-3158 FAX 712-338-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Water Utility
Spencer, |A 51301

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Municipal Water Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa (the Utility) as of December 31, 2004 and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Utility’'s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards,
Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

_significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Utility as of December 31, 2004, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 23, 2005 on our consideration of the Utility's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the resulits
of our audit.
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The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 35
through 37 and 52 through 54 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Lo Lot 727

February 23, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The purpose of management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) is to provide the reader with an
introduction to the financial statements. Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Water
Utility (Utility) of the City of Spencer, Iowa’s financial performance provides an overview of the
Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

The Utility is implementing Government Accounting Standards Board Statement #34 (GASB
34) as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Because of these new
reporting standards for this year with significant changes in content and structure, much of the
information is not easily comparable to prior years. However, in future years, comparisons will
be more meaningful and will go further in explaining the Utility’s financial position and results
of operations.

2004 Financial Highlights
The Utility delivered approximately 458,580,000 gallons of water to its retail customers in 2004
compared to approximately 496,769,000 gallons in 2003.

The Utility’s net assets decreased by $112,663 to $6,939,382 as a result of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2004.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets report all revenues and expenses
incurred during the fiscal year.

The statement of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities,
and investing activities.

The notes to the financial statements provide the required disclosures and other information that
is necessary to give the reader a complete understanding of the data provided in the statements.
The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for

management, monitoring, and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet

CUITENL SSEIS «.nveveeveceree et e et r e s se s s as e et s e e
Capital assets - net of depreciation .........ccoeecveeiieeicees v
INODNCUITENE ASSELS uvvieeiiiireriecereeerever e e semr s res s v s mreaensserenmres

Total assets
Current HabilItIES .......covvivvvereerreevrrcres e e saereeeessrasaeesneeas

Long-term debt .....ccoocvveeri e e
Total liabilities

Investments in capital assets - net of related debt .................
Restricted .....ccoervnccnncirneene. e e s
UNIESIHCHEA et e ans e

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Chanees in Net Assets

UL ettt ee et e e e e e s

Systern operation and Maintenance .........coeevvevvreeereraecinsiaens

Depreciation and amortization ..........cceveveeencinnecrnreveressenne.

Customer service and administration ........cc..cooecereaecveennnne.
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

INLErESt INCOIME .........coveeeeeieeeieer ettt e e

Interest EXPenSe ......cocovv i reemreirecen e s

Other income (EXPEnSe) = N .....ocvcevvveeriereieeeeee e e e emeeee e
Total non-operating revenues {expensc)

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year............coviieiveeeveenvcieeeee,

Net assets - end of year
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2004 2003
$ 3,449,187  § 3,477,740
4,208,924 4,381,793
1.017.350 1.017.156
3 8,675,461 § 8,876,689
§ 456079 S 486,644
1,280,000 1.338.000
1.736.079 1,824,644
2,886,468 3,007,623
192,696 190,759
3.860.218 3.853.663
6.939.382 7.052,045
$ 8,675.461 $_ 8,876,689
2004 2003
$ 850,000 $ 906,955
32202 22.948
882,292 929.903
552,210 490,427
266,184 257,208
164,668 162,285
983,062 909.920
(100,770) 19.983
54,370 65,082
(53,690) (55,182)
(12.573) 28.673
(11,893) 38,573
(112,663) 58,556
7,052.045 6,993,489
$ 6,939,382 $ 7,052,045



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Analysis
The Utility’s total assets decreased by approximately $148,000.

The Utility’s gross revenues decreased by approximately $48,000 or 5.12%.

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $73,000 due to increased expenses related
to system operation and maintenance and well maintenance.

Total operating loss generated in 2004 was $101,000 compared to an operating profit of $19,000
in 2003.

Utility non-operating income (expense) resulted in additional expenses of $92,325 during the
year ended December 31, 2004.

The Utility had a net loss of $112,663 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared ioc a net
income of 58,556 for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Capital Assets and Debt Admiristration
Net capital assets decreased by approximately $121,000 due to depreciation expense being
greater than capital purchases for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Economic Factors

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Utility experienced a net loss. We believe the
factors that led to the loss were decreased consumption due to the cooler summer , increased
distribution costs related to the downtown storm sewer project, increased motor vehicle
maintenance, increased meter testing and replacement costs, and increased lieu of tax payments
to the City of Spencer. The Utility also received less contributions in zid of construction for the
year because of less construction projects being completed during the year.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to present our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Utility’s finances and operating activities. If you have any questions or require
additional information please contact the Finance Supervisor, 712 Grand Ave, PO Box 222,
Spencer, Iowa 51301.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2004
ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS {(Note 4):
Plant in service ............ $ 9,214,826
Less accumulated deprecuatlon 5,005,902
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET $ 4,208,924
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated {Nofes 2and 3} .......ccccoveriviemnnencccennse e, 1,001,806
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted (Note 2) ..., 971,211
Board designated (Notes 2 and 3} ......cccvcvviecienn e seessecnnnee e 1,944,036
Restricted (NoteS 2and 7) ..ot e ar s 192,696
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtful accounts
OF $6,750 ..o.ceceeiiiceieirinre v i esressrarae s ssseessb e s saranssesamns s snnnsnsnnsnns 248,452
Unbilled usage .. 33,800
Materials and supplles mventory 53,436
Prepayments ... 5,556
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,449,187
DEFERRED COSTS:
Unamortized bond isSUe COStS ..., 15,544
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8675461

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revenue bonds payable - less current installments (Note 7}........

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current installments of revenue bonds payable (Note 7) e 9 58,000
Accounts payable ... 350,614
Accrued wages, Vacatlons and benef' ts ..................................... 27,918
Accrued interest ... 10,639
Accrued expenses ...................................................................... 8.908

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt ...l 2,886,468
Restricted - bond funds (Note ?) .................................................... 192,696
Unrestricted . 3,860.218

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Slatements
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$ 1,280,000

456,079

1,736,079

6,939,382

$ 8,675,461



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

OPERATING REVENUES:

Residential and cOMMErcial .........c..cccvvvvrvevveinrerernreeneriersieessnenss
Interdepartmental ..o e
ServiCe PErMIlS ... e

Rental income ..
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERA.:I_ING REVENUES i NIMASaAARANEAsbadndndndsacnnnannnn

OPERATING EXPENSES:

TreatMENT . e

Distribution .. .
Depreciation and amomzat{on
Customer operations ...
General and admlnlstratlve
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) AND TRANSFERS:

Interest income on investments ..

Contributions from developers
Leased facilities (Note 10) ... e
INterest EXPENSE ..o

Gain on plant retiremenits ..

Transfers to City - in lieu of property taxes (Note 6)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
AND TRANSFERS - NET

NET LOSS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ..ot

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 849,251
839
20,429
9,950
1,823

$ 882,292
260,666
291,544
266,184
50,680
113,988

983,062

(100,770)
54,370
29,654
9,141
(53,690)
20,068
71.436)

(11,893)

(112,663)

7,052,045

$ 6,930,382



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from CUSIOMErS .......ccooviiiii e
Cash paid to suppliers ...
Cash paid to employees ..............

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTMITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfer to City - in lieu of property tax .........ccccieirvirrer i e,

NET CASH USED IN NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital @SSEIS .......oecvcieeececveeieroerreesresseenrenens
Proceeds received from sale of capital assets .........cccoeeviieeie e,
Revenue bond principal repayment ...........ccccvciveeieevneccsers s s e eer e ee e s
Paymenits received from leasing of facilities ..........cccceoveeeeeecciieciieeeeeeeee,
INErest PAI .......eere e b ra e ab e eens

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from redemption of investments ...........c..cccoieeeiiii e
Purchase of iNVeSIMENTS ... e e

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ....cccoeeeueeeeerenen,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

Ses Accompanying Notes lo Financial Statements
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$ 871,160
(459,976)

(233,198)
167,986

(71,436)
(71,436)

(117,540)
22,233
{56,000}
9,972

___ (52,455)

(193.790)

1,000,000

(1,000,000)
52,952
52,952

(44,288)
3,152,231

$ 3,107,943



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss from operations

......................................................................................... $ (100,770}
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to net cash provided by
operating activities:
DepreCialtion ... e e et e e e r e e s a e s 264,960
Amortization .. 1,224
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable . (15,132)
Unbilled usage . . 4,000
Materials and supplles mventory {4,555)
Prepayments .. (879)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable ... ———————— 3,261
Accrued wages, vacations, and benefits .........cccooceivivcivinre e 10,328
ACCTUE BXPENSES ......oeiieiiiiiiiieiirasere s erar s sens s seasaesannee e nnaresnsns e smsmnanannnn 5,549
Total adjustments 268,756
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $§ 167,986
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL,
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ........ccccvceevccvvccecvivec . $ 94,256
Decrease in retainage and contracts payable ... 52,938
Contributions from developers ... ree e e snans (29,654)
Cash paid to acquire and construct capital assets $ 117,540

See Note 2 for reconciliation of statement of cash flows to balance sheet.

See Accompanying Noles to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Basis of Accounting
The Municipal Water Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa (Water Utility or Utility)
operates as an independent unit of the City of Spencer and is managed, along with the
Municipal Electric Utility and the Municipal Communication Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa, by a five member Board of Trustees.

The Utility follows the accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission for regulated utilities and proprietary fund accounting for
governmental entities under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

For financial reporting purposes, the Utility has included all funds. The Utility has also
considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Utility are such that exclusion would cause the Utility’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Govermmentat Accounting Standards Board has set
forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria
include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and (1) the
ability of the Utility to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
Utility. It was determined that the Utility has no component units.

The Utility is not considered to be a component unit of the City of Spencer for financial
statement purposes. An audit of the City of Spencer for the year ended June 30, 2004
has been completed and is filed under separate cover.

The Utility's financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the
timing of related cash flows.

In reporting the financial activity of its enterprise fund, the Utility applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The Utility distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with the Utility’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Ulility are charges to customers
for sales and services, Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets are stated at original cost when first devoted to public service.
Currently, such costs include labor-related expenditures, such as payroll taxes,
pensions, and other fringe benefits and administrative costs for labor related to the
construction of new water facilities. In addition, net interest costs on construction debt
are capitalized.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis. Current depreciation expense is
approximately 2.88% of the original cost of depreciable water plant in service.

The estimated useful lives used to depreciate assets by class are as follows:

Infrastructure 40 years
Buildings and equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles o years

C. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Utility expects to collect from
outstanding balances. The Utility provides for probable uncollectible amounts through
a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of
the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the
Utility has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. Changes in the valuation
allowance have not been material to the financial statements.

D. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The average cost method is
used for determining the cost of materials and supplies inventory.

E. Unamortized Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized debt issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt on a straight-line
basis which approximates the effective interest method.
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1.

MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

F. Net Assets
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the financial
statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets
and increased by unspent debt when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.

The Utility’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

G. Income Taxes
The Water Ultility is exempt from federal and state income taxes because it is a
governmental entity organized under the provisions of Chapter 388 of the Code of
lowa.

H. Revenues and Unbilled Usage
Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers’ consumption of
water. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at the end of accounting periods.
Revenues eamned, but not yet billed at December 31, 2004, totaled $33,800.

l. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principals requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS

The Utility's deposits at December 31, 2004 were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of
lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

The Utility is authorized by statute and Board of Trustees' approval to invest in obligations
of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit
and other evidences of deposit at federally insured lowa depository institutions; and the
lowa Public Agency Investment Trust.

The Utility had no investments that are subject to risk categorization. The Utility had
investments in lowa Public Agency Investment Trust which are valued at an amortized cost
of $1,274,930 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940 that also
are not subject to risk categorization.
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2.

MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS -
Continued

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the staternent of cash flows.

Investments are recorded at cost which approximates market. Adjustments are made to
cost for any premium or discount, which is amortized over the maturity of the investment.
Adjustments are also made to account for the change in accrued interest on respective
investments.

Reconciliation of the Utility's cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments is as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Board designated ... e e e $ 1,944,036
(22T (g (o = o [ PRSP RU OO 192,696
LI g =)y T =T [ 971,211
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,107,943
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated ... e e e 1.001.806
Total noncurrent investments 1,001,806
Total cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments $ 4,109,749
BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

The Board of Trustees of the Utility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
contingency reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted net assets, are

being designated for contingencies such as a natural disaster and cannot be expended
without Board approval.

The Board of Trustees of the Utility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
replacement and construction reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted
net assets, are being designated for replacement of property, plant, and equipment and for
new construction. These funds cannot be expended without Board approval.

Assets of the funds as of December 31, 2004 are summarized as follows:

Replacement
and
Contingency Construction
Reserve Reserve Total
Cash and cash eqguivalents ... $ 469,106 $ 1,474930 $ 1,944,036
Noncurrent investments .....ccccevevvecvnreveoineinnnn 1,001,806 1.001.806
Total $ 460106 $ 2476,736 $ 2945842
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004
4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Beginning Additions and Deletions and Ending

Balance Transfers In  Transfers Out Balance
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land ....cooceemveieereee e $ 261,509 $ 2165 $§ 259344
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 261,509 2,165 259,344
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure ..........ccovceviieneecne. 4,992,708 $ 111,707 5,104,415
Buildings and equipment .......... 3,692,841 7,312 3,700,153
VEhiCles .....covveeeieecereeeieer e 122,739 28,175 150,914
Total capital assets being
depreciated 8,808.288 147,194 8,955,482
Less accumulated depreciation ... 4,740,942 264,960 5,005,902
Total capital assets being
depreciated - net ..........ccovvvreninne 4,067,346 (117.766) 3.949.580
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET $4328855 § (117.766) § 2165  § 4,208,924

5. SEWER, STORM WATER, AND SOLID WASTE
The Electric utility bills and collects sewer, storm water, and solid waste revenues for the

City of Spencer. The resulting receivable and corresponding payable are recorded under
the Water Utility. The City of Spencer reimburses the Electric Utility for these services.

6. TRANSFERS IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES

By resolution of the Board of Trustees, voluntary transfers in lieu of property taxes are
made to the City of Spencer, lowa. Currently, transfers approximate 5% of gross sales.
Additionally, funds declared to be surplus can be, and have been, fransferred to the City.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

7. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Series 2001 revenue bonds ...... $1.394.000 $ 56000 S 1,338,000 $ 58,000
Total revenue bonds 1,394,000 1,338,000 $_58,000
Current installments of revenue
bonds payable ......................... (56,000) 3§ (2,000) {58,000)
Revenue bonds payable - less '
current installments .................. $1338,000 § (2000) $ 56,000 $ 1,280.000

The Series 2001 revenue bonds require annual principal payments, due December 1, and
semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. Interest rate throughout the
term of the bonds is 3.84%. The bonds are secured by the future net revenues of the
Utility. Long-term debt matures and bears interest as follows:

Series 2001
Principal Interest
20005 o s 08,000 $ 51,226
2007 e e et e e s e br e e rarn n i raraeeeen 63,000 46,560
2008 ... ettt eae e eeee e e e e e ne e e m enanann 65,000 44,102
2000 e e e e e e e et e e e 68,000 41,549
2010 = 2074 e s sas et rerer e s e nene e s 380,000 165,890
2010 = 201G ettt rer e rre e e ranana e e e e neasanaraeen 459,000 85,639
2020 = 20271 ..o e cereeeeens 184,000 8,083

$1.338.000 $_491,890

The bond resolutions provide certain covenants relating to the collection, segregation, and
distribution of revenues from customers; places certain restrictions on future borrowing
and leasing or disposition of assets; and requires that minimum insurance coverage be
maintained.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - Continued

Restricted Funds

Outstanding Water Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the revenue of the Utility and the
various special funds established by bond covenants. The covenants provide that the
revenue of the utility is to be used first to pay operating and maintenance expenses of the
system and second to establish and maintain the special funds. Remaining revenues may
then be used for any lawful purpose. The covenants also contain provisions which, among
other items, restrict the issuance of additional revenue bonds unless the special funds
noted above contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. The Utility
is in compliance with all significant financial requirements as of December 31, 2004.

At December 31, 2004, the special funds consisted of the following:

Total
Bond SINKING FUNG ...ttt ee e eeaeee e eeaeeeeeee e e sns $ 77,696
BONd RESEIVE FUND ......oiiiei i ieitivreaeeesessessssesenerenssmeasnsnssssssasosessreresesasennne 115,000
Total $ 192,696

Monthly deposits into the bond sinking fund are required to establish the amount
necessary to pay the next installments of principal and interest. The bond reserve fund at
December 31, 2004 equaled the required balance; therefore manthly deposits into the
fund are not currently required. These funds may be used to pay principal and interest
payments when insufficient funds are available in the sinking fund.

The bond improvement fund balance at December 31, 2004 equaled the minimum balance
required; therefore monthly deposits into the fund are not currently required. These funds
are to be used first for principal and interest payments when insufficient funds are
available in the sinking and reserve funds and second for extraordinary unbudgeted
maintenance expenses or system repairs, renewals and replacements,

RATE MATTERS

Rates of the Utility are established by the Board of Trustees and, as a municipal system,
are not subject to the regulation of the Utilities Division of the Department of Commerce of
the State of lowa.

NUMBER OF METER CONNECTIONS

The number of meter connections totaled 5,508 at December 31, 2004.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

LEASES

The Utility leases bandwidth and building space from the Electric Utility. The expense
from such leases is classified as operating expense. The lease is a 20-year variable lease
based on bandwidth and space utilized. Lease expense totaled $22,980 in 2004, of which
$1,915 is included in accounts payable at December 31, 2004,

The Utility leases building space to the Eleciric Utility and Communication utility. The
revenues from such leases are classified as leased facilities. The leases are monthly
leases based on building space utilized. Lease income totaled $9,141 in 2004, of which
$831 is included in accounts recelivable at December 31, 2004.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

IPERS

The Ultility contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state
statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-
9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual salary and the Utility is
required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are
established by State statute. The Utility's contributions to IPERS for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $12,341, $10,195, and $9,659, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the Water Utility who have completed six months of continuous
employment and are 21 years of age are eligible to participate in 2 Money Accumulation
Pension Plan administered by Copeland Plan Services. The Plan is a defined contribution
plan of the money purchase type, intended to qualify under Internal Revenue Service
Code Section 401(a), funded by a combination of employee and employer contributions.
Employees electing to participate are required to contribute 2% of their compensation, and
they may contribute an additional amount of not less than 1% and not more than 10% of
their compensation. The Utility contributes 8% of the employees’ compensation for all
employees electing to participate.

The Water Utility's contribution to the Money Accumulation Pension Plan for 2004 totaled
$17,133.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Water Utility is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and
destruction of assels; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The Utility assumes
liability for any deductible and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

RELATED PARTY

The Electric Utility, Water Utility, and Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa
exchange services in the normal course of business.

Two members of the Board of Trustees hold non-controlling interests in a financial
institution where the Utility maintains cash balances.

Additional related party items are included in Note 10.

ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Staternents
- Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments; Staternent
No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Govermnments: Omnibus; Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures; and Statement no. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Perspective
Differences, were implemented for the year ended December 31, 2004. The statements
create new hasic financial statements for reporting the Utility's financial activities.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Receipts, including bond proceeds:

Municipal Electric Utility ........ccoovevvivcicnnee.

Municipal Water Utility ..

Municipal Commumcatlons Utllll’.y

Combined receipts, including
bond proceeds

Disbursements, including capital out[ay:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility ..

Municipal Commumcatlons Ut:[lty

Combined disbursements, including
capital outlay

TTANSIEIS TN et eee e e

Transfers out .
Transfers in- net

Combined excess {deficit) of receipts
over disbursements

Combined beginning net assets ....................

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Budgeted Final to
Armounts Actual
Actual Original/Final Variance
$18,496,184
956,317
4,881,192
24333693 $24.163.000 $ 170,693
11,842,393
1,000,605
4,305,807
17,148,805 12,839,105 {4.308,700)
1,400,000 (1,400,000)
{1.400,000) 1,400,000
7,184,888 11,323,885 (4,139,007)
22619451 _31,047.036 8,427 585)
$20.804,330 §42,370931  ${12,566.592)

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Reporl
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments  Accrual Basis

Revenues:
Municipal Electric Utility ............ccocovvivieinens $ 9,746,184 3 (461,534) $ 9,284,650
Municipal Water Utility ...........ccoeeeeeeeeneen, 956,317 39,208 995,525
Municipal Communications Utility ................. 4,881,192 105,268 4,986,460
Combined revenues 15,583.693 (317,058) 15,266,635
Expenditures/expenses:
Municipal Electric Utility .. 11,842,393 (2,701,304) 9,141,089
Municipal Water Utility .. 1,000,605 107,583 1,108,188
Municipal Communlcatlons Ut|[|ty ................. 4,305,807 (346.653) 3,959,154
Combined expenditures/expenses 17,148,805 (2,940,374) 14,208,431
Net {1,565,112) 2,623,316 1,058,204
Combined other financing sources - net .......... 8,750,000 (8,750,000)
Combined beginning net assets ...................... 22.619,451 28,139,778 50,759,229
COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS $20.804,339 $22,013,004  $51,817,433

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Reporl
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, [OWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Utilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and Municipal
Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa following required public notice and hearing.
The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized and appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known
as functions, not by fund. These functions are public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects and business type activities. All Utility disbursements are included
in business type activities function.

NOTE 2

The receipts, including bond proceeds, and disbursements, including capital outiays, on the
cash basis for each Utility is summarized as follows:

Municipal Municipal Municipal
Electric Water Communications
Utility Utility Utility Combined
Receipts, including bond proceeds .......... $18,496,184 $ 956,317 § 4,881,192 $24,333,603

Disbursements, including capital outlay .. 11.842 393 1.000,605 4.305.807 17,148,805

Excess (deficit) of receipts over

disbursements 6,653,791 (44,288) 575,385 7,184,888
Beginning net assets ........ccocceneeieeeenne 17,872,511 4,154,037 592,903 22.619.451
ENDING NET ASSETS $24,526,302 $.4109749 §$.1,168.288 §£29,804,339



WvtaeEr, STavE & Co.,LLP
cmﬂﬁsaf fpug[ic O‘?ccourz&arzfi

1316 West | 8th Sireel 1004 21st Sireet #4
P.O. Box 175 P.O. Box 187
Spencer, Jowa 51301-0175 Milford, Jowa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712.338-2488
FAX 712-262-3159 FAX 712-33§-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Water Utility
Spencer, IA 51301

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Water Utility of the City of Spencer,
lowa (the Utility) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, and have issued our report
thereon dated February 23, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the Code of iowa, and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United Stafes.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Ultility's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Govemmenial Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility's operations for the year
ended December 31, 2004 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based
on tests and samples, not all fransactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. There were no prior year statutory
comments.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of
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one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the intemnal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
There were no prior year reportable conditions,

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials
and employees of Spencer Municipal Ulilities, the citizens of the City of Spencer and other
parties to whom Spencer Municipal Utilities may report. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

[ foel P2 757

February 23, 2005
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Part I: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

No matters were noted.
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Partll:
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II-H-04

fI-1-04

SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depaositories has been adopted by
the Board. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution were not exceeded
during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004 exceeded
the amounts budgeted in the business type activities function. Chapter 384.20 of the
Code of lowa states in part that public monies may not be expended or encumbered
except under an annual or continuing appropriation.

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with
Chapter 384.18 of the Code of lowa before disbursements were allowed to exceed the
budget.

Response - The budget will be amended in the future, if applicable,
Conclusion - Response accepted.
Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may not meet

the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses - No expenditures of Utilities' money for travel expenses of spouses
of Utilities' officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business fransactions between the Utility and Utility
officials or employees were noted.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Spencer Municipal Utilities' officials and
employees is in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Revenue Bonds - As of December 31, 2004, the Utility is in compliance with all
significant financial requirements related to its Water Revenue Bond, Series 2001.

Deposits and Investments - No instances of hon-compliance with the deposit and
Investment provisions of Chapter 12(B) and 12(c) of the Cade of lowa and the Utilities’
investment policy were noted.
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA



WimnTHER, STAVE & Co.,LLP
C?S'tfiﬁsc( fpuG[rfa C?ézacourzf:anfi

[316 West 18th Sireet 1004 2151 Street #4
PO, Box 175 P.O.Box 187
Spencer, Iowa 51301-0175 Milford, lowa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712-338-2488
FAK 712-262-3159 FAX 712-338-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Communications Utility
Spencer, IA 51301

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Municipal Communications Utility of
the City of Spencer, lowa (the Utility) as of December 31, 2004 and the related statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets (deficit) and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards,
Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Those standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Utility as of December 31, 2004, and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 23, 2005 on our consideration of the Utility's internal contro! over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results
of our audit.
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The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 61
through 63 and 75 through 77 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

[ Sl SEAC 7

February 23, 2005
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The purpose of management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) is to provide the reader with an
introduction to the financial statements. Qur discussion and analysis of the Municipal
Communications Utility (Utility) of the City of Spencer, Iowa's financial performance provides
an overview of the Ultility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

The Utility is implementing Government Accounting Standards Board Statement #34 (GASB
34) as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Because of these new
reporting standards for this year with significant changes in content and structure, much of the
information is not easily comparable to prior years. However, in future years, comparisons will
be more meaningful and will go further in explaining the Utility’s financial position and results
of operations.

2004 Financial Highlights

Total assets increased by approximately $684,000 which was primarily atiributable to an
increase in the cash balances and an increase in the accounts receivable balances related to
increased telephone traffic and larger Carrier Access Billings. Total liabilities decreased by
approximately $343,000 due to payments on debt service.

Total net assets increased by $1,027,000, as a result of the utility operations.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets report all revenues and expenses
incurred during the fiscal year.

The statement of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities
and investing activities.

The notes to the financial statements provide the required disclosures and other information that
is necessary to give the reader a complete understanding of the data provided in the statements.
The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for

management, momtoring, and planmng,

Condensed Balarce Sheet

CUITENE ASSELS ..o ere e s
Capital assets - net of depreciation ........c.coceeeeeivivicveiccesrenn.
NONCUITENE ASSELS ....veeceeeire e e e e s

Total assets
CUITent abIlIIES .vveeeeeiiie s e eees e eese e et seeaanee s e e reearens

Long-term debt ..o e,
Total liabilities

Investments in capital assets - net of related debt .................
Unrestricted .......ooiceeeeiieeceeer e e e e e e
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assels

Cable televiSIon TEVENUE ....c.cvverieeiree e e saes e snes

Telephone IEVENUE ........ccovceniiicinerierecvcrrrree s seereesrevnsrecveens

Data SErVICES FEVEINUE ...viveeevirieirinimsiessiasessseesseesneecesmeesseesnnes
Total operating revenue

System operation and MaINtENANCE .....oecveveresireririeresieree s

Depreciation and amortization .............cccvevereevrserriesvessersanens

Customer service and administration ..........cccccureeveevrresnrrannn
Total operating expenses

Operating income

INtErest INCOME ..ot e et e s e sae s e sren e eees

INtErest EXPENSE ...vvveeieeccecie et esare e re e e sn e e

Other income (EXPense) - NEL......c.occervieeinecinenencanee e enrres e
Total non-operating expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of Year ...........cccoeevvcevvverevrvssee s,

Net assets, end of year
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2004 2003
$ 1,958,590 $ 1,167,508
6,072,126 6,184,421
34.773 29.434
$ 8,065,489 $ 7,381,363
$ 1,171,874 $ 1,215,054
7.050,000 7.350.000
8.221.874 8.565.054
(943,101) (836,145)
786,716 (347.546)
(156,385) (1,183,691)
$ 8,065,489 3 7,381,363
2004 2003
$ 806,118 $ 747,116
3,662,453 3,193,117
432,499 278.617
4,901,070 4.218.850
2,064,225 2,011,895
775,268 713,066
714,577 746.068
3,554,070 3471029
1,347.000 747,821
12,685 7,974
(325,484) (347,212)
(6,895) 18,061
(319,694) (321.177)
1,027,306 426,644
(1.183.691) (1.610.335)
$_(156385)  $(1.183,691)



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Analysis
The Utility’s total assets increased by approximately $684,000.

The Utility’s gross revenues increased by approximately $660,000 or 15.55%.

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $102,000 in 2004 over 2003 because of
increased expenses for cable programming, telephone operations and customer service due to an
increase in the number of subscribers.

Total operating income generated in 2004 was $1,347,000 compared to $880,000 in 2003.

The Utility had a net income of $1,027,306 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to a
net income of 426,644 for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Net capital assets decreased by approximately $77,000 due to depreciation expense being greater
than capital purchases for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Economic Factors

The Utility continues to see positive growth in subscriber base and also net income. The Utility
will be faced with increased costs of operating due to cable programming contracts. The Utility
will be challenged to continue the strong growth pattern because of competition from incumbent
providers.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to present our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Utility’s finances and operating activities. If you have any questions or require
additional information please contact the Finance Supervisor, 712 Grand Ave, PO Box 222,
Spencer, lowa 51301.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2004

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) ........cccovvreivcv i, $ 1,168,288
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $55,000 .. 387,630
Consumer deposﬂs S 32,983
Materials and supplles mventory ................................................. 21,264
Prepayments ... 139,633
Unbilled usage .. 208,792
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 1,958,590
UNAMORTIZED DEFERRED COSTS ...t cesnie e snaes 34,773
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 3):
Plant N SEIVICE ....oovecece et et s e s e e s sns s 8,319,899
Less accumulated depreciation ...........cccc.ooocciiveieei e 2,247 773
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET 6.072.126
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,065,489

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable ... e $ 750,152
Accrued interest payable (Note 5) ..o 313,578
Accrued wages, vacations, and benefits ......cccccocceiieieiieieieneans 42,563
ConSUMET AEPOSIES .iviveieeiiiii it ee s s e e e e e re e s serresserees 32,796
ACCIUEA BXDENSES ..evivieeeeieieieieiecreee e e e e e e e s es s onesesmnenesnees 32,785
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 1,171,874
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (NOte 5) ....cvvvverieie et 7.050.000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,221,874
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt ............cccoeeuvnnn. (943,101)
Unrestricted ..ot 786,716
TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) {156,385)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) $ 8,065,489

See Accompanying Notss to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

REVENUE:
Cable system revenue .........c.coccrcevicencccencissvviveceeesieeneeee. 3 806,118
Telephone system revenuUe ..o eccenennere e esee e eenes 3,662,453
Data SErVICES reVENUE ...........ciieivumermerrierrn e sranans 432,499

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,901,070
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Plant specific and programming .........covco e 2,064,225
Depreciation and amortization .........ccccovceveeeicciniicecc s, 775,268
Customer services and marketing .......covovoeveveeeciseceseecee e e 314,700
General and administrative ..........ccccocceivivmnicce e 399,877
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,554,070
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,347,000
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE):
Miscellaneous INCOME ........ccccviiveeeerrec e s saensaaaes 72,705
Economic development payments ........c.cccovcieeeiieeieieeceeeee (75,000)
Transfers to City in lieu of property taxes ........ccvvvveicievniineienans {(4,600)
Interest INCOME ... e e 12,685
INterest eXPenSe ... e (325.484)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET (319.694)
NET INCOME 1,027,306
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - DECEMBER 31, 2003 ........c.cooivvviunenes (1,183,691)
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) - DECEMBER 31, 2004 $ (156,385)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received frOm CUSIOMETS ......covveeiiiiiinceeee st e e e e et e e eeeees e eeaeren $ 4,795,802
Cash paid t0 SUPPHETS .....cccceeeieiiriereiie e e essrsesane e s e s e ones e m e aan (2,142,162)
Cash paid 10 EMPIOYEES .....cvecveeiie ettt st se e s s sere s et e ranananane {565,220)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,088,420
CASH FLOWS FRCM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions paid for economic development ............ccoveeeeeeieieeeicecceee e (75,000}
Transfer to City - in lieu of property tax ... s (4,600)
NET CASH USED IN NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES (79,600)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .......co..ocoveeeceeeiie e, (697,746)
Payments received from leasing of facilitios ..........c.ccecveveevevsriecirceen s ree 72,705
Repayment of Iong-term debt ...t e (300,000}

INterest Paid ... e e e e e s (521,079)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES {1.446.120)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest INCome ON INVESIMENES ......ooooi ittt eeeeee e e e ee e e e 12,685
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 12,685
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 575,385
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ..o 592 903
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 1,168,288

See Accompanying Noles to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from OPETAtONS .......cocieciiririe v e r e n e rere e
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net cash provided by
operating activities;
Depreciation ..
Amortization . e
{Increase) decrease |n
COoNSUMET ABPOSIS .....vvreeiriiiririeie e rirere s srer e s e srs e e s ssssar e saneseeenaessmannes
ACCOUNTS rECEIVADIE ..ot e e e ra s sn e netes
UNBIllEd USAGE ......cecieiiitiiieneianeirirrieirieteeeseer e isaes sansrarassssse sesssasesaneresesne e san
Materials and supplies INVENTOTY .........c.oooccir e
Prepayments ...t s sr e e e e n s
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable .. emrereeeearn
Accrued wages, vacatlons and bene‘r’ ts ......................................................
ConsUMEr dePOoSits .......coceieeiiierrrir et r e e ce e e e e e s
ACCTUET @XPENSES ..ceieiiiiareaaren rermamsrarrnrerrrererererrsrsssson s sassssssssnssssasenssesesesesan
Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See Note 2 for reconciliation of statement of cash flows to balance sheet.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Slatements

1,347,000

770,472
4,796

(3.549)
(71,898)
(33,183)
19,855
(97,488)

128,574
2,591
3,362

- 17,888

741,420
$ 2,086,420



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Basis of Accounting
The Municipal Communications Ulility of the City of Spencer, lowa (Communications
Utility or Utility) operates as an independent unit of the City of Spencer and is
managed, along with the Municipal Electric Utility and the Municipal Water Utility of the
City of Spencer, lowa, by a five member Board of Trustees. The Utility was formed to
engage in the development and operation of a broadband communications system and
the marketing of related services such as cable television, telephone, and high-speed
data communications. The Utility's rates are set by its governing board.

For financial reporting purposes, the Utility has included all funds. The Utility has also
considered alt potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Utility are such that exclusion would cause the Utility's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set
forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria
include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and (1) the
ability of the Utility to impose its will on that organization or {2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
Utility. It was determined that the Utility has no component units.

The Utility is not considered to be a component unit of the City of Spencer for financial
statement purposes. An audit of the City of Spencer for the year ended June 30, 2004
has been completed and is filed under separate cover.

The Utility’s financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

In reporting the financial aclivity of its enterprise fund, the Utility applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as ihe following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1889, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The Ulility distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally resuit from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with the Utility's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Utility are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets are stated at original cost when first devoted to public service.
Currently, such costs include labor-related expenditures, such as payroll taxes,
pensions, and other fringe benefits and administrative costs for labor related to the
construction of new communications facilities. In addition, net interest costs on
construction debt are capitalized.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis. Current depreciation expense is
approximately 9.29% of the original cost of depreciable communication plant in
service.

The estimated useful lives used to depreciate assets by class are as follows:

infrastructure 10 - 15 years
Buildings and improvements 20 years
Equipment 5-7 years

C. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are slated at the amount the Utility expects to collect from
outstanding balances. The Utility provides for probable uncollectible amounts through
a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of
the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the
Utility has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. Changes in the valuation
allowance have not been material o the financial statements.

D. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The average cost method is
used for determining the cost of materials and supplies inventory.

E. Unamortized Deferred Costs
Cable television system costs allocated during construction of the system are being
amortized using the straight-line method over the expected life of the cable television
plant.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

F. Net Assets (Deficit)
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the financial
statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets
and increased by unspent debt when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.

The Utility’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

The Utility had a deficit in net assets of $156,385 at December 31, 2004. The utility
intends to eliminate the deficit through future eamings of the Ultility.

G. Income Taxes
The Communications Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes because it
is a governmental entity organized under the provisions of Chapter 388 of the Code of
lowa.

H. Revenues and Unbilled Usage
Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers’ consumption of
communications services. The Utility records estimated unbitled revenue at the end of
accounting periods. Revenues eamned, but not yet billed at December 31, 2004,
totaled $208,792.

. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principals requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Aclual results may differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The utility's deposits at December 31, 2004 were entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of
lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to Insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

The Utility is authorized by statute and Board of Trustees' approval to invest in obligations
of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit
and other evidences of deposit at federally insured lowa depository institutions; and the
lowa Public Agency Investment Trust. The Utility had no investments that are subject to
risk categorization.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004
3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Beginning  Additions and Deletions and Ending

Balance Transfers In  Transfers Qut Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
(=T 1 To OO - 10,342 $ 10,342
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 10,342 10,342
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure .......ccovvececeeeeeeenn. 6,843,397 $ 656,354 7,499,751
Buildings and improvements .... 5,271 3,013 8,284
Equipment ..o, 763,143 38,379 801,522
Total capital assets being
depreciated 7,611,811 697,746 8,309,557
Less accumulated depreciation ... 1,477,301 770472 2.247.773
Tolal capital assets being
depreciated - net ...l 6,134,510 (72.726) 6,061.784
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET $6144852 § (72726) % __ = $.6072126

4. TRANSFERS IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES
By resolution of the Board of Trustees, voluntary transfers in lieu of property taxes are

made to the City of Spencer, lowa. Funds totaling $4,600 were transferred to the City
during 2004.

5. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Note payable - Municipal

Electric Utility ....ocoveeveeecveeennn $7350,000 ___ $300,000 $ 7050000 $ 0O

The Board of Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility adopted a resolution on June 14,
1999, pursuant to Section 384.89 City Code of lowa and Rule 2.5(5) of the rules
promulgated by the City Finance Committee, allowing for the advance of funds not to
exceed $8,000,000 to the Municipal Communications Utility to be utilized for the
construction and development of the communication system. These funds are to be
repaid upon demand and bear a 4.5% per annum interest rate. Accrued interest payable
was $313,578 at December 31, 2004.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CiTY OF SPENCER, [OWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

6. LEASES

The Utility leases building space from the Water Utility. The expense from the lease is
classified as operating expense. The lease is a monthly lease based on building space
utilized. Lease expense totaled $1,804 in 2004, of which $164 is included in accounts
payable at December 31, 2004.

The Utility leases bandwidth, property, and building space from the Electric Utility. The
expense from the lease is classified as operating expenses. The lease is a 20-year
variable lease based on bandwidth and space utilized. Lease expense totaled $386,499 in
2004, of which $371,825 is included in accounts payable At December 31, 2004.

7. RETIREMENT SYSTEM

IPERS

The Utility contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System {(IPERS) which is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state
statute to plan members and beneficiaries. |PERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-
9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual salary and the Utility is
required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are
established by State statute. The Ultility’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $32,050, $26,291, and $25,739, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the Communications Utility who have completed six months of
continuous employment and are 21 years of age are eligible to participate in a Money
Accumulation Pension Plan administered by Copeland Plan Services. The Planis a
defined contribution plan of the money purchase type, intended to qualify under Internal
Revenue Service Code Section 401(a), funded by a combination of employee and
employer contributions. Employees electing to participate are required to contribute 2% of
their compensation, and they may contribute an additional amount of not less than 1% and
not more than 10% of their compensation. The Utility contributes 8% of the employees’
compensation for all employees electing to participate.

The Communications Utility’s contribution to the Money Accumulation Pension Plan for
2004 totaled $43,593.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Communications Ultility is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft,
damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The
Utility assumes liability for any deductible and claims in excess of coverage limitations.
Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

During 2000, the Electric Utility was named in two lawsuits by Mediacom, lowa LLC, the
competing cable television provider in Spencer, and a taxpayer (plaintiffs). Both of these
cases arise out of the establishment and operation of a communication utility governed by
the Spencer Municipal Utilities Board of Trustees. Both cases are currently in the
discovery stage and are consolidated for trial. A trial date has been set in the fall of 2005,
Plantiffs’ motions for preliminary injunction in each case were denied by the court. The
court ruled there was not a reasonable likelihood that Plaintiffs would be successful on the
merits. The present actions seek to block the operation of the entire system. Spencer
Municipal Utilities’ insurer has agreed to defend the cases under a reservation of rights
pending further action. Should the insurance company uitimately decline coverage, the
Spencer Municipal Utilities would be responsible for attorney fees in defending the cases.
Spencer Municipal Utilities will continue to aggressively defend its action, if necessary.
However, at this time, an estimate or range of loss, if any, is unknown. While Spencer
Municipal Utilities believes the remaining claims will be successfully defended, this
litigation does present the possibility of very significant financial exposure for Spencer
Municipal Utilities.

RELATED PARTY

The Electric Utility, Water Utility, and Communications Ultility of the City of Spencer, lowa
exchange services in the nomal course of business.

Two members of the Board of Trustees hold non-controlling interests in a financial
institution where the Utility maintains cash balances.

Additional related party items are included in Note 6.

73



1.

12,

13.

MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2004

ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
- Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, Statement
No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Managemen('s Discussion and Analysis - for
State and Local Governments: Omnibus; Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures; and Statement no. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Perspective
Differences, were implemented for the year ended June 30, 2004. The statements create
new basic financial statements for reporting the City’s financial activities.

JOINT VENTURE

During December 2003, the Utility entered into an agreement with Northern lowa
Communications Partners, L.L.C. {NICP), an lowa limited liability company, to form an
organization pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 28E of the Code of lowa. Under this
agreement, the Utility, along with other members of NICP, agrees to pay for the use of a
shared switch for routing certain telecommunications traffic at rates adopted by NICP. The
Utility will share in profits generated by or be responsible for shortfalls incurred through the
28E agreement. An NICP member will be responsible for maintaining the financial records
for the 28E entity.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 11, 2005, the citizens of Fostoria approved granting a nonexclusive cable
television franchise to Spencer Municipal Utilities.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Receipts, including bond proceeds:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility .. .
Municipal Commumcatlons Ul:hty

Combined receipts, including
bond proceeds

Disbursements, including capital outlay:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility .. .
Municipal Communications Uhhty
Combined disbursements, mcludlng
capital outlay

TTanSIEIS N .o e
TTranSfers QUE .oeevvvieieiecei e e veeeeeenes

Transfers in - net

Combined excess (deficit} of receipts
over disbursements

Combined beginning net assets .........cccec......

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Budgeted Final to
Amounts Actual
Actual Criginal/Final Variance

$18,496,184
956,317
—4.881,192

24333693 $24,163,000 § 170,693

11,842,393
1,000,605
4,305,807

17,148,805 12,839,105 (4,309,700}

1,400,000 (1,400,000)
(1,400,000} 1,400,000

7,184,888 11,323,895 (4,139,007)

22,619,451 31,047,036 (8.427.585)

$29,804,330 542,370,831  $(12,566.592)

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Revenues:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility ..

Municipal Commun[cauons Utl|lty ..............

Combined revenues

Expenditures/expenses:

Municipal Electric Utility ..........cccooecinieninns

Municipal Water Utility ..

Municipal Communlcatlons Utlllty ..............

Combined expenditures/expenses

Net

Combined other financing sources - net ..........
Combined beginning net assets ........cccceeee.

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustmenis  Accrual Basis

$ 9,746,184 $ (461,534) § 9,284,650

966,317 39,208 895,525
4,881,192 105,268 4,986,460
15,583,693 (317,058) 15,266,635

11,842,393 (2,701,304) 9,141,089

1,000,605 107,583 1,108,188
4,305,807 {(346,653) 3,959,154
17,148,805 (2,940,374) 14,208,431
(1,565,112) 2,623,316 1,058,204

8,750,000 (6,750,000)
22619451 28,139,778 50,758,229

£20.804.330 $22,013.094  $51,817.433

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

NOTE 1

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Utilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and Municipal
Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa following required public notice and hearing.
The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized and appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known
as functions, not by fund. These functions are public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects and business type activities. All disbursements are included in
business type activities function.

NOTE 2

The receipts, including bond proceeds, and disbursements, including capital outlays, on the
cash basis for each Ulility is summarized as follows:

Municipal Municipal Municipal
Electric Water Communications
Utility Utility Utility Combined

Receipts, including bond proceeds .......... $18,496,184 & 956,317 $ 4,881,192 $24,333,693
Disbursements, including capital outlay .. 11,842,393 1.000.605 4,305,807 17,148,805
Excess (deficit) of receipts over

disbursements 6,653,791 (44,288} 575,385 7,184,888
Beginning netassets ..........ccccccvvrivenee 17,872,511 4,154,037 592,903 22 619,451
ENDING NET ASSETS $24 526302 § 4,109,749 § 1168288  $20,804,339
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C"mf:iﬁsc{ Pullio %ccounfanﬂ
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Spencer, lowa 51301-0175 Milford. Iowa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712-338-2488
FAX 702-262-3159 FAX 712-338-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Communications Utility
Spencer, 1A 51301

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Communications Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa (the Utility) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004, and have issued
our report thereon dated February 23, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, Chapter 11 of the Code of lowa, and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United Siates.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
nencompliance that are required to be reported under Governmental Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year
ended December 31, 2004 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based
on tests and samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. There were no prior year statutory
comments.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reperting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
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operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
leve! the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal confrol over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. There were no prior year reportable condifions.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials
and employees of Spencer Municipal Utilities, the citizens of the City of Spencer and other
parties to whom Spencer Municipal Utilities may report. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

| Sl Ae¥C

February 23, 2005
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Partl: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

No matters were noted.
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Part 1l:

I-A-04

1I-B-04

[1-C-04

[I-D-04

II-E-04

II-F-04

I-G-04

SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by
the Board. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution were not exceeded
during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2004 exceeded
the amounts budgeted in the business type activities function. Chapter 384.20 of the
Code of lowa states in part that public monies may not be expended or encumbered
except under an annual or continuing appropriation.

Recommendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with
Chapter 384.18 of the Code of lowa before disbursements were allowed to exceed the
budget.

Response - The budget will be amended in the future, if applicable.

Conclusion - Response accepted.

Questionable Expenditures - No expenditures were noted which did not meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attomey General's opinion dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses - No expenditures of Utilities' money for travel expenses of spouses
of Utilities’ officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - Business transactions between Spencer Municipal Utilities
and a board member are detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction Description Amount

Tom Howe, Board Member,
Part-owner of H & N Chevrolet Maintenance andrepairs $ 422

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa, the transactions with the
Board Member do not appear to represent conflicts of interest since competitive bids
were accepted in regard to maintenance and repairs and since the total fransactions
were less than $1,500 during the year.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Spencer Municipal Utilities' officials and

employees is in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No fransactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.
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Part ll:

1I-H-04

11-1-04

SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapter 12(B) and 12(c) of the Code of lowa and the Utilities'
investment policy were noted.

Economic Development - During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Utility paid
$75,000 to Spencer Area Jobs Trust for economic development. According to Chapter
15A of the Code of lowa and an Attorney General's opinion dated August 28, 1986,
government financing of economic development may, in appropriate circumstances,
serve a public purpose. The opinion advises the governing body to evaluate the public
benefits to be obtained and discusses specific criteria to be considered in documenting
the public purpose.

Recommendation - The public benefit to be derived by economic development
expenditures should be more clearly documented. The Board should evaluate and
document the public purpose served by the expenditure before authorizing payment
and should verify that the funds were spent as intended to accomplish economic
development activities.

Response - We will adopt a resolution regarding use of surplus utility funds for
economic development expenditures which serve a public purpose. The Board will
evaluate and document the public purpose served by economic development
expenditure before authorizing payment and will verify how the funds were used to
accomplish economic development activities.

Conclusion - Response accepted.
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